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COMES NOW, Plaintiff, JOYCE FUDGE WILLIAMS, (hereinafter referred to as "Ms.

Williams" or Plaintiff), by and through undersigned counsel, and sues Defendant, NEW PENN

FINANCIAL, LLC, D/B/A SHELLPOINT MORTGAGE SERVICING, INC., hereinafter

referred to as "Shellpoint Mortgage" or Defendant), and alleges:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is a class action brought under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

("FDCPA"), 15 U.S.C. 1692 et seq., the Florida Consumer Collection Practices Act ("FCCPA"),

Fla. Stat. 559.55 et seq., the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201-2201 and the

Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. 227 et seq. ("TCPA") This Court hasjurisdiction

over the Plaintiffs claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1331 (b), 15 U.S.C. 1692k, 28 U.S.C.

2201-2201 (d) and 28 U.S.C. 1334 (b).
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2. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1391 since Plaintiff resides in this

District and the conduct complained of occurred in this District.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiff is a natural person and a resident of Duval County, Florida. At all times

material hereto, Plaintiff was a "debtor" or "consumer" as defined by Fla. Stat. 559.55(2) and 15

U.S.C. 1692a (3) and a "person" as defined by 47 U.S.C. §153(39). Plaintiff has standing to

bring a claim under the FDCPA, the FCCPA, the Declaratory Judgment Act and TCPA because she

was directly affected by violations of these Acts, and was subjected to Defendant's illegal and

improper debt collection activities.

4. Defendant, New Penn Financial, LLC, is a mortgage loan servicer based in

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania. Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., is an operating division of

New Penn Financial, LLC, with its main office in Greenville, South Carolina. Defendant markets

to lenders that it is uniquely equipped to manage the heightened requirements ofservicing loans in

default and in bankruptcy. Defendant regularly conducts business in Jacksonville, Duval County,

Florida.

COUNT I: FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT (FDCPAI

5. This is an action seeking class wide relief for violation of the FDCPA to recover

actual damages in the form ofmoney paid by Plaintiff and all those similarly situated to Defendant

pursuant to a non-existent debt, for statutory damages under 15 U.S.C.A. 1692k(a)(2)(B) and

attorney's fees and the costs of this action under 15 U.S.C.A. 1692k(a)(3).

6. On or about November 19, 2007, Plaintiffexecuted and delivered a promissory note

to Amnet Mortgage Inc., DBA American Mortgage Network of Florida, for personal, family, or
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household services, specifically a mortgage loan on her home at 8428 McGirts Village,

Jacksonville, Florida 32210. That same day, Plaintiff executed a purchase money mortgage

securing payment to Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, 'tic., as nominee for Ament

Mortgage. In due course, the Mortgage was assigned to the Federal National Mortgage

Association. ("FNMA"). The mortgage loan was serviced by Seretus, who monthly corresponded

with Ms. Williams by U.S. Mail by means of a periodic mortgage statement.

7. On November 4, 2011, Ms. Williams filed a voluntary petition for protection from

creditors under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. [Case No. 3:11-bk-08126-PMG

Doc. #1]. On November 4, 2012, a notice ofappearance and request for notice was filed by Antonio

Alonso on behalf of creditor Seterus, Inc., as mortgage servicing company for Federal National

Mortgage Association. [Id. Doc. #27].

8. The Bankruptcy Code recognizes the vulnerabilities of debtors and implements a

strict procedure for reaffirmations of debt by debtors under 11 U.S.C. 524 (c). This statute

requires public and timely filing of all reaffirmation agreements, that the debtor be given written

disclosures and provides the debtor an opportunity to rescind the reaffirmation agreement. All of

these protections are designed to make sure a debtor does not forfeit the fresh start protections

available under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

9. As required under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, and provided in Debtor's Intent to

Surrender Real Property, Ms. Williams stated that she would not reaffirm the mortgage to FNMA

and would relinquish her home located at 8428 McGirts Village Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32210.

10. No reaffirmation agreement was ever exchanged, agreed to or filed with the

Bankruptcy Court with respect to the subject mortgage between Plaintiff and FNMA., the holder

3



Case 3:17-cv-00570-MMH-JRK Document 1 Filed 05/18/17 Page 4 of 26 PagelD 4

of the mortgage note, or its mortgage servicing company agents, Seterus, Inc., or Defendant

Shellpoint Mortgage SerVicing, a division ofNew Penn Financial, LLC.

11. On April 2, 2012, the mortgage loan servicing company Seterus filed its Motion

for Relief from the Automatic Stay and sought leave to foreclose the mortgage on the PlaintifFs

home located at 8428 Mcgirts Village Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32210. [Case No. 3:11-Bk-

08126-PMG Doc. #28]. As an exhibit to its Motion, counsel for the mortgage loan servicer

Seterus, Inc., filed an affidavit stating under oath that Ms. Williams intended to surrender her

home. [Id. Doc. 28-3]. In due course, the Bankruptcy Court entered its Order granting relief from

the automatic stay. [Id. Doc. #32]. 1

12. On April 5, 2012, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court entered its Discharge of Debtor.

[Id. Doc. #29]. Seterus, Inc., the mortgage servicing agent for Federal National Mortgage

Association, was provided notice of the Discharge by the Clerk of Court by U.S. Mail to its

agent's offices located at 14523 SW Millikan Way, Beaverton, OR 97005-2352; and to its

attorney of record. [Id. Doc. 30 Page 1]. In addition, notice of the Discharge was

provided by email to its corporate attorneys, antonio.alonso@marshallwatson.com;

jario.garcia@marshallwatson.com; and BKMailfromCourt@MarshallWatson.com (Exhibit

"A"). The Order of Discharge provided notice to the creditor, Federal National Mortgage

Association, and its agent, that the note and underlying debt seared by the subject mortgage

was not collectable. Pursuant to the Chapter 7 bankruptcy discharge order, Plaintiff was fully

released from any and all personal monetary liabilities on the subject loan.

13. On September 6, 2013, Federal National Mortgage Association filed its verified

complaint to foreclose on Ms. Williams' home in the Circuit Court of the Fourth Judicial Circuit,
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in and for Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida. [Case No. 16-2013-CA-008235-XXXX-MA

Doc. #4].

14. On or about May 16, 2016, Ms. Williams' mortgage and note was transferred

from Seterus, Inc., to Defendant SheIlpoint Mortgage Servicing, a division ofNew Penn

Financial, LLC, for servicing.

15. Defendant New Penn Financial, LLC, through its division, Shellpoint Mortgage

Servicing, Inc., sent communications to Plaintiff, Ms. Williams, in an effort to collect a debt,

notwithstanding the U.S. Bankruptcy Court's Order of Discharge. On May 20, 2016, Shellpoint

Mortgage Servicing, Inc., provided Ms. Williams with a letter ofassignment together with a

payment coupon which listed, among other things, a "First Payment Due Date"; "Monthly

Payment Amount of$663.95" and the "Amount Enclosed." (Exhibit "B"). The statement states

that "mortgages can seem complex". It also stated that Ms. Williams should "[flee free to use the

payment coupon below to send us your first payment. We offer several easy payment options,

including: Free ACH, Online Account Payment, Phone (either with our IVR system or live

agent)." The payment coupon was to be detached and returned to Defendant by U.S. Mail with

payment. It provided instructions on how to make a payment and directions on setting up

automatic payments. The back of the Statement contained various statements about payments,

options, insurance and property taxes. The back of the Statement also contained a disclaimer

pertinent to the case. The disclaimer stated:

If you are a customer in bankruptcy or a consumer who has received a bankruptcy
Discharge of the debt: please be advised that this notice is to advise you of the status of your
mortgage loan. This notice constitutes neither a demand for payment nor a notice ofpersonal
liability to any recipient hereof, who might have received a discharge of such debt in accordance
with applicable bankruptcy laws or who might be subject to the automatic stay of Section 362 of
the United States Bankruptcy Code. However, it may be a notice ofpossible enforcement ofthe
lien against the collateral property, which has not been discharged in your bankruptcy.
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16. The debt demand communication was followed by telephone calls from debt

collectors employed by SheIlpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., to Ms. Williams' cell phone, in an

effort to collect a debt. The debt collectors' telephone number was identified by caller ID as 1-

832-775-7633. The debt collectors called Ms. Williams' cell phone on May 23, 2016, on two

occasions at 12:35 p.m. and 1:05 p.m.; on May 24, 2016 at 4:32 p.m.; May 25, 2016 at 11:44 a.m.,

["Oscar"]; June 6, 2016 at 3:40 p.m. ["Crystal Trotter']; June 23, 2016; June 28, 2016 at 9:50 a.m.

["Katrina"]; July 1, 2016 and July 14, 2016 ["Katrinal, all in an effort to collect a debt. Ms.

Williams repeatedly instructed the collectors to stop calling her and provided her attorney's

contact information.

17. On June 7, 2016, the Circuit Court entered a Final Judgment of Foreclosure and

scheduled a sale date of October 5, 2016. [Id. Doc. #52]. At the judicial sale, the highest bidder

was the National Federal Mortgage Association.

18. On July 22, 2016, by correspondence, the defendant gave notice to Plaintiff that it

intended to commence foreclosure on her home mortgage loan. The correspondence cited the

loan number, the principal balance of the loan, and the street address of the real property.

Defendant also stated that it may seek a deficiency judgment against Ms. Williams ifthere were

insufficient proceeds from the foreclosure sale. [Exhibit "C"J. The back of the Statement also

contained a disclaimer pertinent to the case. The disclaimer stated:

If you are a customer in bankruptcy or a consumer who has received a bankruptcy
Discharge of the debt: please be advised that this notice is to advise you of the status of your
mortgage loan. This notice constitutes neither a demand for payment nor a notice of

personal liability to any recipient hereof, who might have received a discharge ofsuch debt in
accordance with applicable bankruptcy laws or who might be subject to the automatic stay of
Section 362 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. However, it may be a notice ofpossible
enforcement of the lien against the collateral property, which has not been discharged in your
bankruptcy.
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19. In the case at bar, this Defendant attempted to collect on a debt that was not owed

and had been discharged under 11 U.S.C.A. 727 of the Bankruptcy Code. As Judge Posner

stated: "Dunning people for their discharged debts would undermine the 'fresh start' rationale of

bankruptcy and is prohibited by the [FDCPA] which prohibits a debt collector from making a

'false representation of the character, amount, or legal status ofany dej)t.'

20. The Defendant has no legal right to collect any amount from the Plaintiff.

21. At all material times herein, Plaintiff's debt and the debt of others similarly

situated were consumer debts as defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C.A. 1692a(5).

22. At all material times herein, Plaintiff and others similarly situated were

"consumers" as defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C.A. 1692a(3).

23. At all material times herein, Defendant was a "debt collector" as defined by the 15

U.S.C.A. 1692a (6). Defendant acquired its status as a "debt collector" after the subject debt

had been discharged by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court.

24. At all material times herein, Defendant knew or should have known that the debt

they were attempting to or did collect from the Plaintiff and the Class Members had been

discharged.

25. The correspondence sent by Defendant to Ms. Williams is a "communication" as

that term is defined by 15 U.S.C. 1692a (2).

26. By billing Plaintiff and others similarly situated, Defendant attempted to collect a

debt which had been discharged. Defendant's communications that asserted Ms. Williams owed

a debt based on the mortgage loan, including a notice of intent to foreclose, monthly mortgage

statements, a loan modification package, and a delinquent tax notice violates 15 U.S.C. 1692e,
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which prohibits the use of false, deceptive, or misleading representations in connection with the

collection of a debt.

27. In addition, Defendant's above mentioned collection activities falsely

represented/represent the character, amount, or legal status of a debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C.

1692e (2) (A).

28. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's FDCPA violations, Plaintiff and

others similarly situated have been harmed. Plaintiff, and others similarly situated, are

entitled to actual damages in the amount of money paid to Defendant pursuant to these

extinguished debts, statutory damages under 15 U.S.C. 1692k(a)(2)(B) and attorney's fees and

the costs of this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1692k(a)(3).

29. For the purpose of the claims brought in this action, the applicable standard under

the FDCPA is "the least sophisticated" consumer test. ee Jeter v. Credit Bureau. Inc., 760 F.2d

1168, 1172-75 (11th Cir. 1985). The manner in which Defendant chose to present the inconsistent

information on the front and back ofthe letter is misleading to "the least sophisticated" consumer.

30. This is an action seeking class wide relief for Defendant's pattern and practice of

pursuing the collection of discharged debts from the Plaintiff and the Class Members.

31. Because Defendant's actions were intentional, willful and/or without regard for

Plaintiffs rights, Plaintiff reserves the right to seek punitive damages upon the showing on the

records ofevidence sufficient to form the basis of a claim for punitive damages.

COUNT II VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSUMER COLLECTION
PRACTICES ACT ("FCCPA")

32. This is a claim for violation of the Florida Consumer Collection Practices Act F.S.

559.55 et seq.

8
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33. On or about November 19, 2007, Plaintiff executed and delivered a promissory

note to Amnet Mortgage Inc., DBA American Mortgage Network ofFlorida, for personal,

family, or household services, specifically a mortgage loan on her home at 8428 McGirts

Village, Jacksonville, Florida 32210. That same day, Plaintiff executed a purchase money

mortgage securing payment to Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc., as nominee for

Ament Mortgage. In due course, the Mortgage was assigned to the Federal National Mortgage

Association. ("FNMA").

34. On November 4, 2011, Ms. Williams filed a voluntary petition for protection from

creditors under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. [Case No. 3:11-bk-08126-PMG

Doc. #1]. On November 4, 2012, a notice of appearance and request for notice was filed by

Antonio Alonso on behalf ofcreditor Seterus, Inc., as mortgage servicing company for Federal

National Mortgage Association. [Id. Doc. #27].

35. The Bankruptcy Code recognizes the vulnerabilities ofdebtors and implements a

strict procedure for reaffirmations ofdebt by debtors under 11 U.S.C. 524 (c) which requires

public and timely filing of the agreement, that the debtor be given written disclosures and

provides the debtor an opportunity to rescind the reaffirmation agreement. All of these

protections are designed to make sure a debtor does not forfeit the fresh start protections

available under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

36. Unfortunately, during this period of time, Ms. Williams' income diminished while

her cost of living increased. Therefore, as required under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, and

provided in Debtor's Intent to Surrender Real Property, Ms. Williams stated that she would not

reaffirm the Federal National Mortgage Association debt and would relinquish her home located

at 8428 McGirts Village Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32210 to its creditor.

9
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37. No reaffirmation agreement was ever exchanged, agreed to or filed with the

Bankruptcy Court with respect to the subject mortgage between Plaintiff and F.N.M.A., the

holder of the mortgage note, or its mortgage servicing company agents, Seterus, Inc., or

Defendant Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, a division ofNew Penn Financial, LLC.

38. On April 2, 2012, the mortgage loan servicing company Seterus filed its Motion

for Relief from the Automatic Stay and sought leave to foreclose the mortgage on the Plaintiff s

home located at 8428 Mcgirts Village Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32210. [Case No. 3:11-Bk-

08126-PMG Doc. #28]. As an exhibit to its Motion, counsel for the mortgage loan servicer

Seterus, Inc., filed an affidavit stating under oath that Ms. Williams intended to surrender her

home. [Id. Doc. 28-3]. In due course, the Bankruptcy Court entered its Order granting relief from

the automatic stay. [Id. Doc. #32].

39. On April 5, 2012, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court entered its Discharge ofDebtor. [Id.

Doc. #291. Seterus, Inc., the mortgage servicing agent for Federal National Mortgage

Association, was provided notice of the Discharge by the Clerk ofCourt by U.S. Mail to the

agent's offices located at 14523 SW Millikan Way, Beaverton, OR 97005-2352; to its attorney of

record. [Id. Doc. 30 Page 1] and in addition, by email to its corporate attorneys,

antonio.alonso@marshallwatson.com; jario.garcia@marshallwatson.com; and BKMailfrom

Court@MarshallWatson.com (Exhibit "A"). The Order ofDischarge provided notice to the

creditor, Federal National Mortgage Association, and its agent, that the note and underlying debt

secured by the subject mortgage was not collectable. Pursuant to the Chapter 7 bankruptcy

discharge order, Plaintiff was fully released from any and all personal monetary liabilities on the

subject loan.
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40. On September 6, 2013, Federal National Mortgage Association filed its verified

complaint to foreclose on Ms. Williams' home in the Circuit Court of the Fourth Judicial Circuit,

in and for Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida. [Case No. 16-2013-CA-008235-XXXX-MA

Doc. #4].

41. On or about May 16, 2016, Ms. Williams' mortgage and note was transferred

from Seterus, Inc., to Defendant Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, a division ofNew Penn

Financial, LLC, for servicing.

42. Defendant New Penn Financial, LLC, through its division, Shellpoint Mortgage

Servicing, Inc., commencing communicating with Plaintiff, Ms. Williams, in an effort to collect

a debt, notwithstanding the U.S. Bankruptcy Court's Order of Discharge. On May 20, 2016,

Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., provided Ms. Williams with a letter of assignment together

with a payment coupon which listed, among other things, a "First Payment Due Date"; "Monthly

Payment Amount of$663.95" and the "Amount Enclosed." (Exhibit "B"). The statement states

that "mortgages can seem complex". It also stated that Ms. Williams should "[flee! free to use

the payment coupon below to send us your first payment. We offer several easy payment

options, including: Free ACH, Online Account Payment, Phone (either with our IVR system or

live agent)." The payment coupon was to be detached and returned to Defendant by U.S. Mail

with payment. It provided instructions on how to make a payment and directions on setting up

automatic payments. The back of the Statement contained various statements about payments,

options, insurance and property taxes. The back of the Statement also contained a disclaimer

pertinent to the case. The disclaimer stated:

If you are a customer in bankruptcy or a consumer who has received a bankruptcy
Discharge of the debt: please be advised that this notice is to advise you of the status of your
mortgage loan. This notice constitutes neither a demand for payment nor a notice ofpersonal
liability to any recipient hereof, who might have received a discharge of such debt in accordance
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with applicable bankruptcy laws or who might be subject to the automatic stay of Section 362 of
the United States Bankruptcy Code. However, it may be a notice of possible enforcement ofthe
lien against the collateral property, which has not been discharged in your bankruptcy.

43. The debt demand communication was followed by telephone calls from debt

collectors employed by Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., to Ms. Williams' cell phone, in an

effort to collect a debt. The debt collectors' telephone number was identified by caller ID as 1-

832-775-7633. The debt collectors called Ms. Williams' cell phone on May 23, 2016, on two

occasions at 12:35 p.m. and 1:05 p.m.; on May 24, 2016 at 4:32 p.m.; May 25, 2016 at 11:44 a.m.,

["Oscar"]; June 6, 2016 at 3:40 p.m. ["Crystal Trotter]; June 23, 2016; June 28, 2016 at 9:50 a.m.

["Katrinal; July 1, 2016 and July 14, 2016 ["Katrinal, all in an effort to collect a debt. Ms.

Williams repeatedly instructed the collectors to stop calling her and provided her attorney's

contact information.

44. On June 7, 2016, the Circuit Court entered a Final Judgment of Foreclosure and

scheduled a sale date of October 5, 2016. [Id. Doc. #52]. The highest bidder at the judicial sale

was the National Federal Mortgage Association.

45. On July 22, 2016, by correspondence, the defendant gave notice to Plaintiff that it

intended to commence foreclosure on her home mortgage loan. The correspondence cited the

loan number, the principal balance of the loan, and the street address of the real property.

Defendant also stated that it may seek a deficiency judgment against Ms. Williams if there were

insufficient proceeds from the foreclosure sale (Exhibit "C"). The back of the Statement also

contained a disclaimer pertinent to the case. The disclaimer stated:

If you are a customer in bankruptcy or a consumer who has received a bankruptcy
Discharge of the debt: please be advised that this notice is to advise you of the status of your
mortgage loan. This notice constitutes neither a demand for payment nor a notice ofpersonal
liability to any recipient hereof, who might have received a discharge ofsuch debt in accordance
with applicable bankruptcy laws or who might be subject to the automatic stay of Section 362 of
the United States Bankruptcy Code. However, it may be a notice ofpossible enforcement of the
lien against the collateral property, which has not been discharged in your bankruptcy.

12
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46. At all times material to this complaint, Defendant was a "debt collector" as

defmed under Fla. Stat. 559.55(6), since the debts at issue were all in default at the time

Defendant acquired and/or began servicing them. At all times material herein, Plaintiff and others

similarly situated were "debtors" as defined by Fla. Stat. 559.55(2).\At all times material herein,

Plaintiff's debt and the debt ofothers similarly situated were "debts" or "consumer debts" as

defined by Fla. Stat. 559.55(1).

47. The FCCPA, section 559.72(9) provides:

In collecting consumer debts, no person shall:

(9) Claim, attempt, or threaten to enforce a debt when such person knows that the debt is

not legitimate, or assert the existence of some other legal right when such person knows that the

right does not exist.

Fla. Stat. 559.72(9) (emphasis added).

48. The billing letters sent to Plaintiff and others similarly situated by Defendant were

an attempt to collect a debt.

49. However, Defendant had no legal right to seek collection ofany amounts from

Plaintiff and others similarly situated, and was in fact enjoined from doing so pursuant to the

bankruptcy discharges of the subject amounts.

50. By attempting to collect debts previously discharged in bankruptcy, Defendant

violated Fla. Stat. 559.72(9) by claiming and attempting to enforce a debt which was not

legitimate and not due and owing.

13
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51. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's FCCPA violations, Plaintiff and

others similarly situated have been harmed. Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to actual damages,

statutory damages and attorney's fees and costs pursuant to Fla. Stat. 559.77(2).

COUNT III —THE DECLARATORY JUDGMENT ACT 28 U.S.C. 44 2201-2201

52. The Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201-2201, offers a unique

mechanism by which a party may seek to remedy ongoing violations of statutory provisions and

to prevent ongoing harm in form of declaratory and injunctive relief.

53. Specifically, the Declaratory Judgment Act reads:

In a case of actual controversy within its jurisdiction...any court of the United States,

upon the filing of an appropriate pleading, may declare the rights and other legal relations ofany

interested party seeking such declaration, whether or not further relief is or could be sought. Any

such declaration shall have the force and effect of a final judgment or decree and shall be

reviewable as such. Further necessary or proper relief based on a declaratory judgment or decree

may be granted, after reasonable notice and hearing, against any adverse party whose rights have

been determined by such judgment. 28 U.S.C. 2201-2201.

54. Plaintiff took out a loan from Amnet Mortgage, Inc., for personal, family, or

household services, specifically a mortgage loan on her home at 8428 McGirts Village Lane,

Jacksonville, Florida 32210.

55. Ms. Williams filed for Chapter 7 Bankruptcy in 2011.

56. The Bankruptcy Code recognizes the vulnerabilities ofdebtors and implements a

strict procedure for reaffirmations of debt by debtors under 11 U.S.C. 524 (c) which requires

public and timely filing of the agreement, that the debtor be given written disclosures and

14
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provides the debtor an opportunity to rescind the reaffirmation agreement All of these

protections are designed to make sure a debtor does not forfeit the fresh start provided by a

bankruptcy.

57. No reaffirmation agreement was ever exchanged, agreed to or filed with the

Bankruptcy Court with respect to the subject mortgage as between Plaintiff and FNMA as the

mortgage holder or its mortgage servicing agent, Shellpoint Mortgage.

58. On April 5, 2012, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court entered its Discharge of Debtor

and the note and underlying debt secured by the subject mortgage became uncollectable.

Citicorp Trust Bank was notified via mail of the status of the debt by the Jacksonville Division

Middle District Clerk ofCourt. (Exhibit "A"). Pursuant to the Chapter 7 bankruptcy discharge

order, Plaintiff was fully released from any and all personal monetary liabilities on the subject

loan.

59. Sometime thereafter, the debt was transferred or assigned to the Defendant

for servicing.

60. Frequently lenders and mortgage servicers abuse the debtors' vulnerability after

the discharge and ignore the bankruptcy code requirements and the discharge injunction by

continuing to communicate with the debtor. The most vulnerable ofdebtors are typically the

ones, such as Ms. Williams, who continued to reside in her home because the mortgage lender

had not yet foreclosed on the house. The lender and servicer convey to the debtor they can

remain in their home and stall or foreclosure and eviction from the home. Given the state of

mind and financial limitations of the debtor, homeowners are frequently thrilled at the prospect

of any potential to remain in their home. That is precisely what Defendant did to Ms. Williams in

15
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the instant case. To wit, Defendant communicated orally and in writing that Plaintiff should

continue to pay money on the discharged debt so that she could live in the house.

61. Many of these communications clearly asserted that Ms. Williams owed a debt

based on the mortgage loan, and were sent directly to Plaintiff at her home and not to her attorney

of record. The communications cannot be construed as mere attempts to enforce the mortgage

holders in rem rights to foreclose.

62. The Defendant has no legal right to collect any amount from the Plaintiff.

63. There is an actual controversy within the jurisdiction of this Court regarding

whether Defendant's conduct in sending written communications which seek to collect money on

a debt which was discharged in Bankruptcy violates the discharge order in the debtor's bankruptcy

case, the FDCPA, and the FCCPA. The parties are in need of a declaration of their rights and

responsibilities under Federal and Florida state law.

64. Plaintiff believes that Defendant has sought payment for debts previously

discharged in bankruptcy in circumvention of existing federal court orders ofbankruptcy courts,

the FDCPA, and the FCCPA.

65. Defendant's conduct as described herein should be declared to be unlawful and

improper.

66. Defendant should be enjoined from sending billing letters requesting payments for

debts previously discharged in bankruptcy.

67. Defendant should be forced to disgorge all ill-gotten gains collected from

consumers as a result of its unlawful conduct.

16
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COUNT IV- VIOLATION OF THE TCPA

68. This is a claim for violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C.

227 et seq. ("TCPA") by Defendant.

69. In 1991, Congress enacted the TCPA in response to a growing number of

consumer complaints regarding certain telemarketing practices for example, computerized calls

to private homes. Congress determined that federal legislation was needed because

telemarketers, by operating interstate, were escaping state-law prohibitions on intrusive nuisance

calls. See Mims v. Arrow Financial Services, LLC, 132 S. Ct. 740 (2012).

70. Accordingly, the TCPA regulates, inter alia, the use ofprerecorded messages and

use of automated telephone equipment, or "autodialers." Specifically, the plain language of

section 227(b)(1)(A)(iii) prohibits the use ofprerecorded messages or autodialers to make any

call to a wireless number in the absence ofan emergency or the prior express consent of the

called party.

71. According to findings by the Federal Communication Commission ("FCC"), the

agency Congress vested with authority to issue regulations implementing the TCPA, such calls

are prohibited because, as Congress found, automated or prerecorded telephone calls are a

greater nuisance and invasion ofprivacy than live solicitation calls, and such calls can be costly

and inconvenient. The FCC also recognized that wireless customers are charged for incoming

calls whether they pay in advance or after the minutes are used.

72. In 2003, the FCC held that predictive dialers like the -me used by defendant

constitute an ATDS under the TCPA. In re Rules and Regulations Implementing the Telephone

Consumer Protection Act of 1991, Report and Order, 18 F.C.C.R. 14014, 14115, 1 131 (July 3,

2003).
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73. The FCC also held "[c]onsumers may revoke consent in any manner that clearly

expresses a desire not to receive further messages, and that callers may not infringe on that

ability by designating an exclusive means to revoke." In the Matter ofRules and Regulations

Implementing the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of1991, Declaratory Ruling and Order,

FCC 15-72, 2015 FCC LEXIS 1586, 1 63, 30 FCC Rcd 7961, 2015 FCC LEXIS 1586, 62

Comm. Reg. (P & F) 1539 (F.C.C. July 10, 2015) ("FCC 2015 Order").

74. Verbal instructions to cease collection calls apply to the TCPA and thus

effectively revoke any prior consent the caller may have had. Osorio v. State Farm Bank, F.S.B.,

746 F.3d 1242 (11th Cir. 2014).

75. On or about November 19, 2007, Plaintiff executed and delivered a promissory

note to Amnet Mortgage Inc., DBA American Mortgage Network of Florida, for personal,

family, or household services, specifically a mortgage loan on her home at 8428 McGirts

Village, Jacksonville, Florida 32210. That same day, Plaintiff executed a purchase money

mortgage securing payment to Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc., as nominee for

Ament Mortgage. In due course, the Mortgage was assigned to the Federal National Mortgage

Association. ("FNMA").

76. On November 4, 2011, Ms. Williams filed a voluntary petition for protection from

creditors under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. [Case No. 3:11-bk-08126-PMG

Doc. #1].]. As provided in Debtor's Intent to Surrender Real Property, Ms. Williams stated that

she would not reaffirm the Federal National Mortgage Association debt and would relinquish her

home located at 8428 McGirts Village Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32210 to its creditor. On

April 5, 2012, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court entered its Discharge of Debtor. [Id. Doc. #29.
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77. Defendant New Penn Financial, LLC, through its division, SheIlpoint Mortgage

Servicing, Inc., commenced communicating with Plaintiff, Ms. Williams, in an effort to collect a

debt, notwithstanding the U.S. Bankruptcy Court's Order of Discharge. On May 20, 2016,

SheIlpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., provided Ms. Williams with a letter of assignment together

with a payment coupon which listed, among other things, a "First Payment Due Date"; "Monthly

Payment Amount of$663.95" and the "Amount Enclosed." (Exhibit "B"). The statement states

that "mortgages can seem complex". It also stated that Ms. Williams should "ffleel free to use

the payment coupon below to send us your first payment. We offer several easy payment

options, including: Free ACH, Online Account Payment, Phone (either with our IVR system or

live agent)." The payment coupon was to be detached and returned to Defendant by U.S. Mail

with payment. It provided instructions on how to make a payment and directions on setting up

automatic payments. The.back of the Statement contained various statements about payments,

options, insurance and property taxes. The back of the Statement also contained a disclaimer

pertinent to the case. The disclaimer stated:

If you are a customer in bankruptcy or a consumer who has received a bankruptcy
Discharge of the debt: please be advised that this notice is to advise you of the status of your

mortgage loan. This notice constitutes neither a demand for payment nor a notice ofpersonal
liability to any recipient hereof, who might have received a discharge of such debt in accordance
with applicable bankruptcy laws or who might be subject to the automatic stay of Section 362 of

the United States Bankruptcy Code. However, it may be a notice of possible enforcement of the

lien against the collateral property, which has not been discharged in your bankruptcy.

78. The debt demand communication was followed by telzphone calls from debt

collectors employed by Shellpoint Mortgage Servicing, Inc., to Ms. Williams' cell phone, in an

effort to collect a debt. The debt collectors' telephone number was identified by caller ID as 1-

832-775-7633. The debt collectors called Ms. Williams' cell phone on May 23, 2016, on two

occasions at 12:35 p.m. and 1:05 p.m.; on May 24, 2016 at 4:32 p.m.; May 25, 2016 at 11:44 a.m.,

["Oscar"]; June 6, 2016 at 3:40 p.m. ["Crystal Trotter]; June 23, 2016; June 28, 2016 at 9:50 a.m.
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["Katrinal; July 1, 2016 and July 14, 2016 ["Katrinal, all in an effort to collect a debt. Ms.

Williams repeatedly instructed the collectors to stop calling her and provided her attorney's

contact information. In addition to her oral revocation, the consent to telephone Ms. Williams

regarding the debt had been revoked via her bankruptcy discharge.

79. The telephone call from Defendant to Plaintiff's cellular telephone number was

made using an ATDS.

80. The subject calls were placed using a predictive dialer.

81. Defendant, or its agents, placed calls to Plaintiff at a telephone number assigned

to a cellular telephone service.

82. The telephone calls Defendant placed to Plaintiff were not placed for emergency

purposes, as defined by TCPA 227 (b)(1)(A)(i).

83. Defendant made unsolicited telephone calls to the wireless telephone number of

each plaintiff and the other members of the class using a pre-recorded voice and/or using

equipment that had the capacity to store or produce telephone numbers to be called, using a

random or sequential number generator.

84. At the time Defendant placed the phone calls alleged herein, Defendant did not

have consent to do so.

85. Defendant has therefore violated the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. 227(b)(1)(A)(iii), which

makes it unlawful for any person within the United States to make any call (other than a call

made for emergency purposes or made with the prior express conser, t of the called party) using

any automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice

20



Case 3:17-cv-00570-MMH-JRK Document 1 Filed 05/18/17 Page 21 of 26 PagelD 21

86. As a result of Defendant's illegal conduct, the members ofthe class suffered

actual damages and, under 227(b)(3)(B), and are each entitled to, inter alia, a minimum of

$500.00 in damages for each such violation of the TCPA.

87. Plaintiff and class members are also entitled to, and do, seek injunctive relief

prohibiting Defendant's violations of the TCPA in the future.

88. Defendant has caused consumers actual harm, not only because consumers were

subjected to the aggravation that necessarily accompanies these calls, but also because

consumers frequently have to pay their cell phone service providers for the receipt ofsuch calls;

such calls are also an intrusion upon seclusion, diminish cellular battery life, and waste data

storage capacity.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

89. Plaintiff brings the FDCPA and FCCPA claims pursuant to Rule 23 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalfofherself and a class defined as all Florida

consumers who (a) had or have a residential mortgage loan serviced by Defendant which

Defendant acquired when in default; (b) received a Chapter 7 discharge of the mortgage

debt; (c) were sent a billing letter in substantially the same form as the Mortgage Statements

found in composite B (Exhibit "B") by Defendant referencing a mortgage debt discharged in

Bankruptcy. A subclass of individuals within the applicable statutes of limitations for each

claim is also appropriate.

90. Plaintiff brings the TCPA claims pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure on behalfofherself and a class defined as: (a) All persons in the United

States (b) to whose cellular telephone number (c) Defendant placed a non-emergency telephone

call (d) using an automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice (e)
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within 4 years of the complaint (f) where Defendant did not have express consent to call said

cellular telephone number OR where consent had been revoked for any such calls.

91. The F D CPA and F C CPA class is so numerous that joinder of all members

is impractical. Defendant routinely uses a form document attached hereto as the Mortgage

Billing Statement found in composite (Exhibit "B, during the course of its collection on

delinquent debts. Defendant uses the same form letter in connection with its collection efforts in

hundreds if not thousands of instances. Given the percentage of consumers who filed for

Bankruptcy during the appropriate time frame, it is reasonable to presume that there are hundreds

of class members.

92. Plaintiff does not know the exact number ofmembers in the TCPA Class, but

based upon the size and national scope ofDefendant's business, Plaintiff reasonably believes that

the class members' number at a minimum is in the thousands based on the use of software to

make the debt collection calls.

93. There are questions of law and fact common to the FDCPA and FCCPA class,

which questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual members. The

principal issues raised by this claim are whether Defendant's letter violates the FDCPA, the

FCCPA, and the common language of the debtor's bankruptcy discharge injunction.

94. There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the Class, which

common questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members.

Those common questions of law and fact include, but are not limited to:

a. Whether Defendant engaged in a pattern ofusing an laps to place calls to

cellular telephones;

b. Whether Defendant's dialer delivers pre-recorded messages to cellular telephones;
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c. Whether Defendant's conduct was knowing or willful;

d. Whether Defendant's actions violated the TCPA;

95. As a person who received the telephone calls using an ATPS or an artificial or

prerecorded voice, without their prior express consent, or whereby consent had been revoked, all

within the meaning of the TCPA, Plaintiff asserts claims that are typ;cal ofthe members of the

Class. Plaintiffwill fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class, and

Plaintiff does not have an interest that is antagonistic to any member of the Class.

96. The Plaintiffs claim is typical of those of the class members. All are entitled to

relief by virtue of Defendant's violations of the consumer protection statutes raised in Plaintiffs

Complaint.

97. The Plthntiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class. She has

retained counsel experienced in class actions as well as the handling ofactions involving unlawful

business practices. Neither Plaintiff nor her counsel has any interests antagonistic to the Class

or which might cause her not to vigorously pursue this action.

98. Certification ofa class under Rule 23(b)(2) is appropriate since the Defendant has

acted on grounds that apply generally to the class so that final injunctive and declaratory relief is

appropriate.

99. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) is appropriate, in that a class action is

superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.

The interests of the class members in individually controlling the prosecution and defense of

separate actions is minimal, in that the class members are unlikely to be aware that their

rights were violated and that individual actions are uneconomical. Difficulties likely to be
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encountered in managing this class action are substantially less than those that are involved in

other types of cases routinely certified as class actions.

100. This Clasi Action Complaint seeks money damages and injunctive relief.

101. The joinder ofall class members is impracticable due to the size and relatively

modest value ofeach individual claim. The disposition of the claims in a class action will

provide substantial benefit to both the parties and the Court in avoiding multiplicity of identical

suits. The class can be easily identified through records maintained by Defendant.

102. Defendant has acted on grounds generally applicable to the Class, thereby making final

injunctive relief and corresponding declaratory reliefwith respect to the cl.Ass as a whole appropriate.

Moreover, Plaintiff alleges that the TCPA violations complained of herein are substantially likely to

continue in the future if an injunction is not entered.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffprays that the Court enter an Order:

A. Certifying this action as a class action as provided by Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure, appointing Plaintiff as Class Representative, and appointing the

undersigned Counsel as Class Counsel;

B. Adjudging that Defendant violated the FDCPA sections enumerated above, and

awarding Plaintiff and Class members actual damages in the form ofmoney paid to

Defendant on the discharged debt and statutory damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C.

1692k;

C. Adjudging that Defendant violated the FCCPA, Fla. Stat. 559.72(9), and awarding

Plaintiff and Class members actual and statutory damages pursuant to Florida Statutes

559.77(2);
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D. Declaring that Defendant's attempt to collect debts previously discharged in

bankruptcy is unlawful;

E. Enjoining Defendant from sending billing letters similar to (Exhibit "B") in the

manner described in this lawsuit;

F. Ordering disgorgement ofall ill-gotten sums collected in violation ofthe law;

G. Awarding Plaintiff, and all those similarly situated, reasonable attorney's fees and

costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1692k(a)(3), and Florida Statutes

559.77(2);

H. A declaration that Defendant's practices described herein violate the Telephone

Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. 227;

I. An injunction prohibiting Defendant from using an artificial or prerecorded voice

message to call numbers assigned to cellular telephones without the prior express

consent of the called party;

J. An award ofstatutory damages for Plaintiff and each Class member in the amount of

$500.00 for each and every call that violated the TCPA;

K. An award of treble damages, as provided by statute, ofup to $1,500.00 for Plaintiff

and each Class member for each and every call that violated the TCPA;

L. Awarding Plaintiff, and all those similarly situated, any pre-judgment and post-

judgment interest as may be allowed under the law; and

M. Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff, individually and on behalfof all others similarly situated, demands trial by jury.
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Dated this 4th day ofMay, 2017.

MAX STORY, P.A.

Is/ Max Story
Max Story, Florida Bar No: 527238
328 2nd Avenue North, Suite 100

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250

Telephone: (904) 372-4109
Facsimile: (904) 758-5333

max@maxstorylaw.com

JANET R. VARNELL, FBN: 0071072
BRIAN W. WARWICK, FBN: 0605573
VARNELL & WARWICK, P.A.

P.O. Box 1870

Lady Lake, FL 32158

Telephone: (352) 753-8600
Facsimile: (352) 504-3301

jvarnell@varnellandwarwickcom
bwarwick@varnellandwarwickcom
kstroly@varnellandwarwickcorn
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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L.::Case 3:11-bk-08126-PMG Doc 30 Filed 04107112 Page 1 of 5 i A
Vnited States Bankruptcy Court

Middle District of Florida

In re:
Case No. 11-08126-MG

Joyce FUdg:bt
Chapter 7

or CfitTIFICATE OF NOTICE

Dietriet/off: 113A-3 Deer: dwanda Page 1 of 3 Date Revd: Apr 05, 2012

TOV2 IP: 818 Total Notineds 36

Notice by first class mail was sent to the following persons/entities by the Bankruptcy Noticing Center on

Arm 07, 2012.
db +aoyoe fudge, 8428 MeGirta Village iano, Jacksonville, FL 32210-0425

cr +Seterus Inc. Lew Offices of Marshall C. Wataon, PA. 1800 NW 49th Street Suite 120,

Port Lauderdale, FL 33309-3042
21242966 •ASSRO, 3650 Milwaukee Street, Madison, UM 51714-2304

21242965 •Amex Dub, 9111 Duke Blvd. Mason, OH 45040-8999

21242969 +Chela/Sallie Mae, Attn: Claims Department, Po Box 9500, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18773-9500

21242971 +Community-let Cu/conla, 637 N Lee St, Jacksonville, FL 32204-1141

21242973 +Czed/tore Interchange, 90 Holtz Drive, Buffalo, NY 14225-1470

21242962 +Duval County Tax Collector, 231 Forsyth St. 4130, Jacksonville FL 32202-3380

21242975 +SoMe Depot, PO Bea 651000, Dallas, TX 15265-3000

21242977 +Lisa Fudge, 8050 103zd St Apt X2, Jacksonville, FL 3221C-6650

21242978 +Louis Williams, 8234 Zerita Court, Jacksonville FL 32210-345C

21529284 +MeGirte Village Owners Assoc, 2955 Bartley Road: Suite 108, Jacksonville, FL 32257-6284

21491101 +musts Village Oenera Association, Inc., 2955 Hartley, Suite 108,

jackeonville, FL 32257-6284
41444004. +merits Village Owners Assoc, 2955 Hartley Road, Suite 108, Jacksenville, rL 32257-6244

21242280 414010fthROCOVerytiansgamente 10965 Oecater Road, PhiladelPh1a, PR 19154-3210

21242582 +Setezus, 14523 8v Milliken Way St, Beaverton. OR 97005-2352

.Netice.bg eleltronic traammiesion vas sent to the following persona/entiti•s by the Bankruptcy Noticing Center.

tz NMI: SPTOSYS.Com apr OS 2012 22:58:00 Gordon P. Jones, P 0 Box 600459,

Jacksonville IL 32260-0459
11242961 +Dam: BASKANSR2.COM Apt 05 2012 22:58:00 Bank Of AMer10a. Po Box 11054,

Wilmington, DS 19850-7054
21242968 +EDI: CSADD.comapr 05 2012 22:56:00 Chase, Po Box 15298, Wilmington, DE 19850-5298

.21533290 EDI: CBASS.COM Apr OS 2012 22:56100 Chase Bank OSA, W.A., PO Box 15145,

Wilmington 02I 19850-5145
21242970 +EDI; CIVIC:1119.CM Apr OS 2012 22:58:00 Citibank Dan,

-Citidorp Credit Servictoa/Attn: Contralir, Po Box 20363, Eanaas city, mo 64195-0363

21748197 +E-mail/Text: bknotificaticasecleurl.org Apr 06 2012 00:27:43 community neat Credit Union.

P.O. Box 2304, Jacksonville, FL 32203-2204

21242972 +a-mail/Texts bknotificationsecicufl.org kpr 06 2012 00:27:43 Community First Cu Of.

623 N Main St, Jacksonville, FL 32202-3011

21576351 SDI: BANIAXER2.c03I Apr 05 2012 22:58:00 FIR card Services. N.A. as successor to..

Bank of AMOriCa. S.A. MIA), and Ham America sank, NA., PS Sex 15102.

Wilmington D2 19846-5102
21242963 ZVI: ILDEPREP.COM Apr 05 2012 22:58:00 Florida Dept. of Revenue, BankrUptCy Vnit.

P.O. Box 6668, railahassee, rL 32314-6688

21670558 81:11: RBOOVERYCORP.COM Apr 05 2012 22:58:00 GE Capital Retail Bane,

c/o Recovery Management Systems Corp, 25 SE 2nd Ave Suite 1120, Miami PL 33131-1605

22242914 +SDI: ANSC.0314 Apr 5 2012 22:58:00 Getb/JC Penny, Attention: Bankruptcy, Po Box 103104,

Roswell, GA 30076-0104
21242916 EDI: 128.024 Apr OS 2012 22:58:00 Internal Revenue Service, Attention: Special Procadur,

400 W. Bay St. Stop 5730, Jaokeonville, FL 32202

21242279. +SDI: TSTS2.CON ipr 05 2012 22:58:00 Macy's, PO Box 183084. Columbus, OS 43218-3084

22687299 E-Mail/Text: bec-4Ma5tumeguantum38r0ep.co0 Apr 06 2012 00:44158

Quantum! Group LLC as agent for, World Financial Network National Bank. PO Box 788,

Kirkland, WA 98083-0788
21629164 +EDI: 8ALNABOXSVICI80.008 Apr 05 2012 22:58:00 Sallie Mae, c/o Sallie Hee Inc.,

220 Lesley Ave. Wilkes-Barre, PA 18706-1496

21242981 +SDI: SBARS.COM Afar OS 2012 22:58:00 Sears/clone, 101 E 60th St. worth,

Sioux rails, 40 57104-0432
21242964 +S-Ma.1.1/TeXt1 eatp.region21.or.ecfeued0i.00v Apr 06 2012 00:09:33 united States Trustee,

135 11 Central Bind, Suite 620, Orlando, FL 32801-2440

21242983. +SDI: WINOB.Q011 Apt 05 2012 22:58:00 Minnie/Jessica London, Attentioe: Bankruptcy,

P.O. Box 182686, Columbus, OS 43218-2886

.21242984 +1211: WIMISS.COM Apr 05 2012 22158:00 Mtnnb/rommans, PO Fax 182273, Columbus, ON 43218-2213

21242985 +EDI: 111212B.COR Apr 05 2012 22:58:00 Winnb/tse. Attention: Bankruptcy, to Box 182686,

Coluebesi OH 43218-2686 TOTAL: 20

BYPASS2D RECIPIENTS (undeliverable, duplicate)

sty! Gordon,. Jones, P.O. Box 600459, Jacksonville, FL 32260-0454

teat)** +Gordon 11 Jong., PO Box 600459, Jacksonville. FL 32260-0459 TOTALS: 0, 4 2, 44 0

Addresses marked were corrooted by inserting the ZIP or replacing an incorrect ZIP.

5929 regale:tines require that automation-compatiele mail display the correct ZIP.
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Case 3:11-1:31(-08126-PMG Doc 30 Filed 04107/12 Page 2 of 5

District/Ws 1131-3 Users veranda ?age 2 of 3 Date Aced: Apr OS, 2012

Tore ID: RIO Total Noticed: 36

BYPASS= RECIPIENTS tconciduedy

Joseph dpeelleas‘deciare ander the penalty at perjury that I have sent the attached docunecat to theabove listed entities in the manner

shown, and prepared the CertificateofMace sod that It is true and correct to thebest of Information and belief.

Mahe Coulti9eRedo*/ tidy (0flidal Fara 9): Pursuant to Fed. R. l3ank. P. 2902(aX1). *Wes _____the teloPlets SodaStow*

Plusher00)4the athlete') was fared:bed to all pardon ibted. TVs offieled court espy annahe: foe redacted 4 as enquiredby the

bessisuptcy redo and theIndkbay's privacy policies.

AVIA NU Signedam 45111141÷gerk-
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District/oft: 113A4 User: (Wanda Page 3 of 3 Oat* Rcvd: Apr 05, 212

Form ID: 816 Total Noticed: 36

The following persons/eUtitieis vete eent notice through the court's mitaelectronic mail (Email)

system on April 5, 2012 at the address(tte) listed below:

Antonio Alonso on behalf of Creditor Seteroo Inc antonio.alonsotbarahalleatson.com,

jairo.garcieSmarshellwatson.cmerMailfromOourtedarshollWatson.00m
Gordon P. Jones on behalf of Trustee Gordon Jones glonesSepitrustoo.com
Gordon P. JOneS gionesitepitrustes.com, 00040000i.spicisystems.com
UWE Story on behalf of Debtor Joyce Fudge max0collinsst0ry1aw.cam. lwasildicoIlinsatorylaw.com

TOTAL: 6
United States Trustee JAE 13/7 O5TP.Regi0n21.0R.EaSnadol.gov
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Fenn DISIONdsi Fors MOM
United States Bankruptcy Court

bifiddle District ofFlorida

Case No.113.1.-Iligallitaldfi
Chapter 7

Inlc Dubtor(a) (ainne(s)used* the dtbtor(s) in the lastS yeas, includingmarried, maiden, trade, endaddress):

IOWPude_
aka Joyce Wilms
8421; latof3htsM.Lana
Jadtionvilie;FL 33210

SwigSow*No.:
xxx—tz-1909

Employer's Tax LD. No.:

DISCHARGE OF DEBTOR

it appearing that the debtor is entitled to a discharge,

IT IS0111111319:

Tbedebtor is greoted a discharge under section 727 oftide 11, Unitipd SUNS Code, (the Bankruptcy Code).

BY THE COURT

1111141kgw.
Paul M. Glenn

Dated: Apol 5, 2012 Gaited States &minnow Judge

suus BACKOF THIS ORDER FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
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FORM BIS condoned (12107)

EXPLANATION OF BANKRUPTCY DISCHARGE
U4 A CHAPTER 7 CASE

This court ceder grants a &chew to the person named as the debtor. It is not a dismissal ofthe case end it

does not determine how muchmoney, deny, the trustee will pay to creditors.

ralindsultalishugasiThiganhallog
The distils's, psohibia any attempt to collect from the debtor a debt that has been discharged. Forexample, a

creditor is notparadted to contact a debtorby mail, phone, or otherwise, to fde at continue a lawsuit, to attach wages

or othermpot,, or to take any otizr actionto collect a discharged debt fromthe debtor. [In a case implying

wirmeroperty."Itere are also special rules that protect certain comnumity property owned by the debtor's

moue;meiifthat *me&dint file&bankruptcy case.] A creditor who violates- We cider can be requhed to pay

dumpend ettormy'e fees to the debtor.

However, acreditor maluirzeutie riOt to enforce a valid lieu, such as a mortgage or security intenst,

tiandebtorlifeeptyerAudio,ifthat lieu was not avoided or eliminated la the banlauptcy case. a

debts:nosy voltage*plyladebt thathas been discharged.

The chapter 7 discherge order eliminates a debtor's legal obligation to pay a debt that is discharged. Most, but

not all, types ofdebts are disehmed ifthe debt existed on the date the benkruptcy case was filed (Ifthis ease was

begenender &einem chapter afire Bankruptcy Code and convetted to chapter 7, the discharge applies to debts

owedwhen thebanlauptcy case was converted.)

ildlalkagaSaWNEkligidi
Some alba common t)pes ofdebts which mewdischarged in a charm 7 bankruptcy easeatm

a. Debts far mostnow:

b. Debts =mat to pny nectlischorrable tnem

o. Debts*atom dceeestie support obligations;

d. Debts. iksmost Widen inns;

DebtotbsDint On% maims, fesibiunes, or catmint casdattien obligation;

L Debt' ftw moral*furiesordesthceased by dm debtor's arced= ofa meter vehicle, vend, oraircraft while intexiceted;

g SonsdehtSwhichwan not properly listedby the debug

b. Debts that the barhorgoey own specifically has decidedor will decide in this bankruptcy ease ate oot disobargx1;

L Mosierwhich IbP MALLhasgiven the_discharge retectiona by signinga reafilintation agreement in compliance wins the

tharrapteyCederequiscatats torresofdebts; said

j,Delitkovad to dinsinpension, profit sharing, stockbonus, other retirementplans, et to dte 'ThriftSavings Plan firWeal

elifitirits ttirwads types oilcanSun these plans.

InfOrIllidlin leonly a general summary of the bankruptcy discharge. There are exceptions to these

This
talt&ruin. Because the law le amplitated, you may wale to consult an attorney to determine the erect

geseffect efthe &theme in this case.



Sincerely.
SAP*, MotuXIS Sevidng
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.1..1 i .fPhoneNumber: 800035-7107
Fs= 1101487-1137

Mon FrkikeflAMeire0OPM
i il ilat8:00AM*013FM

twae.sheripabitmtgasm

MA" 4;:

I 6n
mewaMI6

Pa: Prowls,Address: MS Wens Mikes Jadcaarwille, FL. =0

Deer Jove lid Wham

fedmintMaims Servicing would like to *vibrate you and Intorm you that erractWe 0511802016. the servicing of your low has been

transferred from Warm Mo. to SheSpoInt Mortgage Servldng. At admire. we basis husk kgeetty and sound pradices ere the

*amnion= of releemistd" and are committed to pmviding you with outlay sank:wand an mereptiond eaperienos mikeany other.

Shdpolot Mote& Boykin& understands mcrtgages can seem armplex and h Is our responsby to provide you with as many

WO and Wires to mike It as simNe and easy for you as possible. Ott Customer Care Team has an Immense amount of

leuraledp end ere hereto address ell your moms. ifyou have any questions regarding yaw mortgage tom your payment or have

any other moms. *sea old us at 804465:7107. Our Bye agents am twaliable Whom the hours of 8:00AM40:00FM Monday

through Friday, end ligitiAM-ROOPM on Saturdays (EST). It is our pleasure to speak with you any time yea need us.

You may elso vilit ow waken. at wew.sheepoinuntg.com where you will End additional Information regarding mortgeges. Once you

crest* an accourd, you mill hos aline mess to make payments, viva statements and wen chat with a eve eget to address any

4uslikitYanivri him

Despite mortgsges seeming compicated, we believe eervIctrg our customers shouldn't be. Wah that In mind, phasehetfres to use

the paymere coupon below* send us yawamt preynwtt. We offer sward may payment opacers, Including:

Free ACH
Omen Amami Paymett
Phoesitellbw*Photr IVRsystem or live agent)

shelipoint Mortgage Servicing *Ammo you and Is excited to have you as our valued customer.

SER REYliatliZ SIDE ORAITAC:MCD FORAN IMPORXANT STATEMENT OF YOUR RIGHTS.
P DX011 Mientliesi CiellaMOUNO3

X OM*iffiparay Potpunt*wasJIM Rob= VahPalm& X

PAYMENT COUPON

J 05/0i/2011
P.O..7ada.,a.

.1163.95
REQUESTED M

SWIM= totOM R401
EIMMUOIRMALEMIgandil

PaPPIPPROOMO-Wale7714Wm Pliallisdr•tiPlUIW*1019401,1111111PliPtIMI
dilPIPOIMIPP111144411111Hdeldhilliba SHELLPOVIT MORTGAGESERVICING
JOYCEtA WWASIS P.O. BOXMOO

1628=EVILI.AGE IN CINCINNATI, OH 4523440W
1:1.32210,0125
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MidpointWaimea Pardsgs, page MidpointLoan ft

M I
Helping You Manage Your Mortgage

To ensure a smooth transfer, please review the fotiovAng Importers information regarding your loan parted& Our records Indicate

that your 0610112011 payment is due. You wm receive a Bev Statement from Shalipoint Valgage Servicing each month, and

effeotive0511$12016, begin sending your mortgage payments to us using one of the°peons beim. Asdew date (Ma

keer, the principal is $80,501A7 andyour wormbalance Is $4,554.72.

Loan information

To heip simplify the management of your mortgage, we

have provided ths fcilowtrig breakdoem to use as an easy
reference.

Q Can Live Chat Secure Ernail

snaeowar 4ijor whwAsh•upointintexamt www.shapointintexanv
1140F

oy;y,; r, r,., t. ILL;v4, ts—V,

E77-:1/4.744tEr.T.rityi:-
(f
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Reach Out toUs,
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Sheilpointwelcome Package, page 4 Shapely! Loan 10:

FAQs

Swept In limited climmudelicee, theiss requires your present servicer to sand notice at least15 daysbefore the

effective date Of tarsier co at dosing. Your new servicer must also sand you this notice no later than 15 daysafter the

effective date or tender date or at dosing. The assignment, este or transfer of the seivicing of the manesge ban doss

not affectmwterm err condition ci the mortgage, other than the terms dkaelly related to the serAdng of your loan (Lg.

paymentsand biquides).

lf you payby cher**, you are authodzing Midpoint mortgage servicing to use the check infamaticm to make a one4ime

amitotic*Wareach dieek presented, from the account at the financial insetudon designated on the cher*. This

eleationiodebit bs for the exact *amount Indicated on the check

By January 31 of each year, Sheepcint Mortgage Servidng provides an Annual Tax and interest Statement for IRS

reporting on the portion of the previous year that Shrew:int Mortgage Sentdrig servicedyour low. If your loan iscurrently

escrowed for taxes and/or inseams, Midpoint Mortgage Servicing is required by Imo to analyze your loan Sheepokit

mortgage Savidng fl fatly you in writing if your paymentamount changes.

Premkons for mortgage life, acddental death or disabnity Insurance vitil netts transferred from your previous setvicer.

You may contactyour cants far arrangements to maintain your coverage-through *act hiking. Mesas contactyour

preulduaservicer if yoU we unaUre Of Wiur defier% name.

You should also be name of the Moving Intimation, Witch is set out in mcre detail ln Section 6 of the Reel Estate

Seamier* Procedures ActIRESPA) (12 WC 2805)

Section 6 of RESPA (12 LISC 2805) gives you certain consumer rights. If you send equafted oatenmotor to your

loan services.conoentlim the stinking of your loan, your savviest must provide you with a mitten acknovdedgment

within live (5) business, days of receipt of your request. A -qualified mitten request' le a written =respondence, other

than notice one primedcoupon cc other paymerd medium suppked by the samtcaq end) includesyourname,

socowit number and reasons for the request. If you %owl to send equalifled vaitien request° regarding the servicing of

your loan, ft must be sent to Shelipoint Mortgage Servicing, P.O. Box WM, Greeretilie, SC 206030128 or you can cell

80041**107.
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tikellpointWelcome Package, page 5
Shelipoint Loan ID:

No later than thirty (SO) business days after receiving your request, your service, must make any appropriate conections

to your account and must provide you with a mitten clarification regarding any dispute. During this 30-day period, your

servicermay not provide Infomration to a consumer reporting agency concerning any overdue payment Meted to such

period or qualified mitten request. However, this does not prevent the senior from Initialing foreclosure tf proper

spun&east under the motives doormats.

A Witnessday is a day on which to offices of the business entity ate open to the public for carrying an 14sta/di* all

of Its Whose filmdom

Section 6 of RESPA also providesfor damages and costs for individuals or classes of individuate in atrannstanoes *tem

servioers are shows to have violated the requkements of that Section. You stasid seek legal advice if you Woveyour

tights have been vie:toted If you have any question for your previous savior, Seterus, Inc., aboutyour mortgage loan

rx stnasfer, pins* oonfactlhern ueillS the Mowing information:

toter^ Inc.,
PO Box 1077

liatifoof, ar 06143
666.6706277

Please read the famine hnportant notices as they smart, your ditto.

This la enadapt to called a debt and any infannation obtained win bo used for thatpurpose. This communicaon Is from a debt

oclador.

If you are a customer In bankruptcy or a customer who has received a bankruptcy discharge ofthis debtplease beadvised thatthis

notice Is to adviseyou citeMiss ofyotrcrowloan. This noticeconsatutes neither a demand forpaymed nor a notice of

Balky to Ivry recipient hared, %Ow matto:
.1received a -wV ofout debt in anordenoe Mil applicable beniauptcy

=aromight besaladto the autmalla ofSection 362 clam d Stales Bankruptcy Cale. Hanover, itmay be a nodes

of posals entreanerd of the Ben windto prepay, aid% has not boon diadusgsd tn your benlouPtcy.

Mantra earvIcemandrera and crepandentre The federal Sarweernambers CMRad Ad and antra stabbows provide

ImPoltotPatna= foryou, Including Wrest taw Prctecdonespa Inhibiting foredooms under most clinumstanoos during and

twelve manta sitar the sandasnambers Windy or ether service. Comiselleg for carded saMemembera Is available from Mtary

Onalilourne end the Weed StensArmed Fames LandAssidonceor other similar agendas.

Tin following Is a Breda sandellan ci the kiormatice previously provided:

Lea per error las dogmata: rases Important's quo pusdan Meta sue dared:as.

El *dode la pserent ned6oadan as essrionsr cobro de Is dank y tan Warnecke WNW*sera albedo a Id In. La

plant. comenleadlin proviensde tor ewesde coluo de derides.

81 sated as un clients di situate de bancarrola un chant* quohs read& una ambulate de artadadapor bencanitet tangs en

wards gussets notificadie thine como i Informate sabre al rioted* de su ladarno hIpotecouto. Eats Woo no conslituye una

=legaelbidods psgo ni un "Aso de resoonsebridsd dot] contra nInaJno do Ire antedates de la presents nalloadem, quo pudiese

rundescant de este dpo de &rude de wearmWd cen la leglabolon *NMSOWS beauvrote o quo nudism ser

oblidgtaleratti adomfilas an Muddd Artfoulo 362 del MOde Bancsnain de los Eitados Wide& No obitente. pods ser

4ale deunspost*apicedon degammen sobre Is propleded come gersails, quo an no ha sido desorgadaas su

protractdehancerrot.

Atenolin unIformadasydspaadastes: Is las federal de Ayuda CM pare llamado' y arashmigtesadman; Warm

imp:denies prolsodonas pea Iota. qua Induyar protseelonse pars las taws de Wards y M delas dessolonai

hipoiderles de. leseframetenetee dUrellte y mews tisepoledel soviet miterucdro tip deservido. Hay

teneejarte peeks rtfeees dieponikle dorMiley _Ottawas y do Urea Stake Armed Forces Lanai Auditellar (Mounds
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P.O. BOX 1410 S., SheLlpo-int Men ThumMae=
TROY, Mi 480984410

Fri: 8:00AM.3

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

M
%..7 Mortgage Servicing

Thou Number: 866423-2174. a
km866467-1187

wIttelk Lonotitigsdatuashallpoinatswom

nillisdigkili4111***111RIFillisduhnkhilts1P11P1 LaiNana 05716161393

S.SFRECSM L4$03 R.408
FSNIERS12001180 417281101149 101818 1Fritnipal Ilebesein $80,501.47

JOYCE M WILLIAMS Lk, IP464: Imilsonville, FL32210

rAC28Iaare FL32210-4426. rimmaiiMINIIIIIII^
07/2212016

DarJorge hf WOAD= i

The above redianced mortgage lel serviced by ShellpdSerneingCibellpoinnatMortgage on the above refigneedproperty fa in

default and finglostuopecesedinphive or may soon conntesem Bemuse yon have intakes steps to resolve the dellneneney, we have

bees instatedby theowner °friarnog.. lean to commage fixedosere.

proceeds
In additicat to intelaing on the property, diet:wax oftbe mortgep lotus may sts4 a dersciancyjudgmeet spinetyou iftbo

tomthe ibralosore sale chinot payoffthe emoont yen owe on themartyrs leen.

Fonelonos Alternadva

Vyou are unable to payyour inottgage loan because ofa thmodal hardship, there ete Wises that may be mailableto you—steh as a

loaa modificedon or edam barbs=altemsadves, including short sate or deed4o4iett offbreelosare.

You mayhave teceived Beaman Solicitation Package. It is not too late for you to be evaluated for an altemathe to fbrechasure atm if

yoo previously evened thencewore not interested in a tineelosere alteinadws !frudid not receive or oolong% begin rim

patentee theBotrowar flolicitadostPada., you &addcontact Shelipeint to obtain mother pacimge You can mum Kt Gomez

erthonlegbonesuablyand*Meglisted below.
1

MrsitLe=10103quatment•.
P.O. Doi 10826
MEI: 157
Oseen‘Se„ SC 296034826
Telophose 866-5454579 at. 7633

Year Beetwar ResponsePackage mutt be completed and sent to Sheilpoint iagay to be considered for alternatives to foteelestee.

Sbelipages *WMinflame:kw sulaniting a onsplete Barrow Response Pst.r is Wog

motarbeitarsocenewizonat
F.O. Sos 10826
lodilt 157

Telephone 8664454en579 7633.Greenville, SC 29603.0826

Ifyea have boa previously denied a loan modification, and you are contempkting,en appeal or have a pending appeal ofthis denial. You

mayabaft a log modification applies:15l is lieu ofthis appeal within 30 days ears the dateOggnotice.

EUD-epproved manglers are avalleble to provide you with the information end andstantas you mayneed to avoid tbreclosure. You can

use the sem* tool at Inirfiwav.hod.goelatioes/hsgisiblhorilii to find a coonsolo/ near you a by ceiling 1(888)995-HOPE 0033.

Sineenth
Shellpoint Mortgage Sealeing

WS ItSVRRSE SIDE ORATTACHEDFOR AN IMPORTANT STATICKIINT OFYOURmins.
P1000001 PAST11141113 0081117tIAMOD

1
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